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MR. MOORE:
(Whereupon,
MR. MOORE:

Dave Douglas and David Anthony Stewart.

the defendants came forward.)

Your Honor, standing before ya is Mr. Dave

Douglas, he's here on Indictment 2009-GS-42-5962 which is a

true billed indictment for trafficking in cocaine over 400

grams.

He's being allowed to plead to the lesser included

offense of trafficking cocaine twenty-eight to a hundred grams

first offense, he's represented by Mr. Andy Johnson; and also

before Your Honor is Mr. David Anthony Stewart. He's here on

Indictment 2009-GS-42-6024 which is a true billed indictmenf

for trafficking cocaine over 400 hundred grams. He too is

being allowed to plead to the lesser included offense of

twenty-eight to a hundred grams, he's represented by

Mr. Albert Smith, there are no further recommendations or

negotiations by the State.

THE

THE

THE

THE

THE

THE

THE

COURT:

You are Mr. Stewart?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

COURT:

You're Mr. Stewart?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

CQURT:

And you are Mr. Douglas?

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

COURT:

Alright, gentlemen, if you would, please

raise your right hand, the clerk of court needs to swear you

in.

(Whereupon, the defendants were sworn.)
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THE COURT: Alright, Mr. Douglas, you intend to enter a

plea today to trafficking cocaine 28 grams to 100 grams?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: And,

Yes, sir.

Mr. Stewart, you intend to enter a plea

to trafficking in cocaine 28 grams to 100 grams?

THE DEFENDANT:

Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Alright, gentlemen, if ever during this

process if either of

just let me know and

you wish to speak to your lawyer, you

I'1]l allow you to do so in private. How

old are you, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: Mr.

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: How

THE DEFENDANT:

didn't go to college.

THE COURT: Mr.

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: How
d;opped 6ut?

THE DEFENDANT:
country, I di -- was

THE COURT: Are
Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT:

Twenty-nine.

Stewart?

Thirty-five.

far did you go in school, Mr. Douglas?

I finished high school,. yeah, didn't, I

Stewart?
GED.

far did you go in school before you

Actually, I was -- when I came to this:
too old to go back te high school.

you married, single, divorced or widowed,

Yes, sir, I'm married.

3




1 THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?
2 THE DEFENDANT: Single.
3 THE COURT: Do you have any children, Mr. Douglas?
| THE DEFENDANT: Yés, sir.
5 THE COURT: How many?
6 THE DEFB&DANT: I got three livin' with me and one is
7 not.
8 THE COURT: How old are the children?
5 THE DEFENDANT: The oldest one is 7 and 7, 6, 3 and 2.
10 THE COQURT: Mr. Stewart?
11 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
12 THE COURT: Do you.have a job outside the home,
13 Mr. Douglas?
14 THE DEFENDANT: Right now not really. I I would s - buy
15 and sell cars.
16. THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?
17 THE DEFENPANT: Work with my dad.
18 THE COURT: What type of work?
19 THE DEFENDANT: Contract plumber.
20 THE CQURT: Ever serve in the military, Mr. Douglas?
21 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
22 THE CQURT: Mr. Stewart?
23 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
24 THE COURT: When you got arrested on these chatges, how
25 long a time did you spend in jail before you made bond,
4
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Mr. Douglas?

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, about that time.

Mr. Douglas?
THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

type of drug or alcohol abuse, Mr. Douglas?
THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

lawyer has done, Mr. Douglas?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

make the decision to enter the plea today, Mr.

5

THE DEFENDANT: It was about two, two days.

THE COURT: Within the last twenty-four hours, have you
consumed any type of substance that is adversely or negatively

affecting your ability to understand what we're doing today,

THE COURT: Alright. Have you ever been treated for any

THE COURT: Are ya satisfied with the work that your

THE COURT: Beyond that which has been stated in this
courtroom, has anybody come to you and threatened you in any

way or have they made you any promises in order to get you to

Douglas?
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THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: The de -~ I I can properly conclude that the
decision to enter the plea today is a ffee and voluntary
decision on your part, Mr. Dougl;s?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I need for you to understand that under the
law you are presumed innocent of these charge that's presently
against you and you do have a right to have a jury trial on
the charge. At any jury trial that would take place, it would
be the State that has the burden of proof and the State would
have to convince all twelve members of a.jury that you are in
fact guilty beydnd a reasonable doubt. Now in order to enter
a plea however, you Have to give up your right to that jury
trial but if you wish to have a jury trial, that is fine, we
will simply scheduie one for you. Do you understand that you
have a right to that jury trial, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And do you wish to give up your right to that
jury trial and proceed with entering the plea, Mr. Douglas?

6
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I need for you to understand that there are
other very important constitutional rights that you are
entitled to but that you have to give up in order to enter a
plea: You have to give up your right to confront and
cross-examine the State's witnesses, you also have to give up
your right to présent evidence which you or your lawyer might
feel would establish some typa defense to these charges and
you have to give up your right of subpoena and you also have
to give up your right to remain silent. Now-do you understand
all those rights, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sr.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And do you wish to give up all those rights
‘and go forward with the plea, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mf. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Alright, gentlemen, if you would this
gentleman over here (indicating) is the solicitor, he is going
to give me the facts behind the the case. I need for ya'll to
pleaée listen to him and after he is finished I'll have some

7
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more questions for you.

DEFENDANT STEWART: Okay.
MR. MOORE: Thank Your Honor. This incident occurred on

June the 16th 2009. Deputy Carraway with the Spartanburg

County Sheriff's office was on patrol in the vicinity of mile
marker 73 on I-85 here in Spartanburg County when he witnessed
the vehicle that the defendant was a passenger and driver of
commit a traffic violation following too closely to some other
vehicles and then changin' lanes. He attempted to mbve up
through traffie to initiate a traffic stop. By the time he
got in position, they had already gotten off the interstate,
he then got off the interstate as well, went to Best Western
Hotel where he'd seen the vehicle parked in the parking lot,

the two defendants already checked in. He deployed his canine

-unit which is assigned to him around the vehicle in the

parking lot and it positively alerted to a presence of
narcotics in the vehicle, made contact with the defendants in-
their hotel room, brought 'em down, brought one of 'em
downstairs, Mr. Douglas I beiieve,.and explained to him that
his canine alerted to the presence of narcotics and requested
consent to search the vehicle, at that time he was given
consent to search tﬁe vehicle. A search of the vehicle found
in the trunk compartment a box of washing detergent, one of
the large cardboard boxes of washing detergent, inside that
box it was obvious that it had been opened and reglued to the
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officer, he opened it up, dug through the washing detergent
and found what later tested to be a little bit over 1 kilogram
of powder cocaine, Ybur Honor. |

THE COURT: Were you able to hear the solicitor when he
told me the facts that are behind the case, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

' THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you believe that as he stated the facts to
me that he is substantially correct, Mf. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I need for'you to understand that on the
charge that is presently against you that I am required to
impose a sentence of between 7 to-25 years and also impose a
fine of $50,000. Do you uqderstand that, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewért?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you also understand ﬁhaﬁ the charge that's
presently against you is classified as both a violent and also
a serious offense under the law, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: Mr. Stewart?
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"offense, Mr.

Yes, sir.

THE DEFENDANT:
THE COURT: And have you been able to talk to your lawyer

as to the consequences and ramifications of this -- of these

offenses being classified as both a violent and also serious
Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Understanding the possible sentence I could

impose as well as the ramifications of the offense being

classified as both a vioclent and sericus offense, you still

wish to enter the plea, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: Mr.

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: Mr.

Yes, sir.
Stewart?
Yes, sir.

Dbuglas, are you in fact guilty of

trafficking cocaine 28 grams to 100 grams?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: Mr.

Yes, sir.

Stewart, are you in fact guilty of

trafficking in cocaine 28 grams to 100 grams?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT:

Yes, sir.

Have you been able to hear all of my

guestions, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT:

THE COURT: Mr.

Yes, sir.
Stewart?

10
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have all of yoﬁr answers been truthful and
honest, Mr. Douglas?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Discovery's been shared with both of the
defendants?

MR. MOORE: Yes, sir, it has, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Does Mr. Douglas have a prior record?

MR. MOORE: No, sir, You: Honor.

THE COURT: Does Mr. Stewart have a prior record?

MR{ MOORE: No, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything further from the State on
Mr. Douglas or Mr. Stewart?

MR. MOORE: ©No, sir.:

THE COURT:l Yes, sir, Mr. Johnston..

MR. JOHNSTON: May it please the Court, Your Honor. As
you've heard Dave has three children, he lives with those
children's mother, they live together as a family, he has one
for whom he pays for in child support alsc. He was born in
Jamaica. He came to the United States at about age 20. He is
in fact a citizen of the United States. He became a citizen

about two and a half to three years ago so as I understand his

"situation there will be no immigration consequences for him as

11
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a result of this plea.

Mr. Smith and I have done our best to thoroughly
investigate the circumstances of the stop in this case.and of
the search in this case and I believe that I can say along
with Mr. Smith that we have concluded that those issues were
not worth pursuing in light of the offer that the State

extended to us and we have explained that thoroughly to our

_clients about what we found out as a result and what the

potential risks and potential benefits of pursuing that
strategy would have been.

I would ask the Courf to consider a few points in
mitigation regarding Dave: He has no criminal as the Court
has heard, he's here before Your Honor today accepting
responsibility, he was cooperative with the police officers as
you heard, his, uh, the entire premise for the search I think
would have been based at least in part on his consent to
search the vehicle wherein the drugs were found. Your Honor,
this is a large quantity of drugs obviously but I would ask
the Court to consider that Dave 1s not at the top end of this
particular drug transaction, he is at the bottom end of this
particular drug transaction. They didn't find any guns in the
car on either of these gentlemen, no money, there's no
evidence to indicate that they were engaged in selling these
drugs or anything like that. I think the evidence would lead
a reasonable person to include that they are what's called in
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drug trade "mules" which essentially someone or someone who is
entrusted with carrying the drugs from point A to point B
because of the inherent dangers of traveling with the drugs.

The big end people don't want to get caught with the drugs so

we end up with people like these gentlemen here. On the other

hand, they did know it was wrong, Your Honor, and they accept
responsibility for what they did. There is one point I would
ask the Court ﬁo consider: This is an overall plea with no

negotiations or recommendations, there is one minor point that
I think the solicitor and I have agreed on: They found a very

small quantity of marijuana in the car, my client has been

found guilty at a bench trial for that marijuana, sentenced to

30 days or a fine, I believe that they are gonna recommend
that this sentence run.concurrently with that 30-day sentence.
At the appropriate time Dave would like to address you.

THE COURT: Mr. Douglas, do you agree with what your
lawyer just stated to me?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Douglas, is there anything you would. like

to say or would like for me to know or consider?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, sir, really, I'm accepting the
responsibility for what I did but I was in the position where
I wasn't wofkin', I got kids and T I really need mo -- I had
no way of payin' bills and I was just tryin' a one time thing
to try to get some money 'cuz I really didn't have it and I

13
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was pretty much that's how I really got myself into it. I
didn't know the danger of it. I didn't know -- I never had a
criminal record, I've been workin' the whole time, I've been
laid off and that's pretty much how I got in this situation.
I just try to do to get money for my kids and I I I really éot
caught up in a situation that I neﬁer should have been in and
I really apologize and I'm sorry for that, very sorry 'cuz I
got four kids, I have no way to pay the bills and I got laid
off in those times and I couldn't, I éouldn't afford and I
apologize.

MR. JOHNSTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Yes, sir, Mr. Smith.

MR. SMITH: Please the Court, Your Honor. I represent
Mr. Stewart and of course I can tell you that over the past
months I have basically represented his entire family. 1I've
been on ;he phone the last two or three days with the mother
who is very teligioqs. She is disappointed in what's happened
here and he is too and the reason we were taking so long to
come around is because I saw the family connection and
Mr. Stewart he was crying with his mom, his dad and telling
them how sorry he was that he's put them in this position. He
doesn't have a criminal record, he knows that, he's accepting
responsibility and, Your Honor, we believe that he's not a
danger to society if the Court were to consider the lower end
of a -- of thg range. The other thing I tell the Court is
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that if you were to consider the low end of the range he will
not not probably be a citizen of the United -- a resident of
the United States. He's a resident from Jamaica and probably
would be deperted under the current laws of this country once
that sentence is finished, that's not something he's looking
forward to because the lifestyle in Jamaica is not one

that -- it's more of a scavaging-type lifestyle . than it is a
working lifestyle. He doesn't wanna go back there so his
sentence will not end no matter what the Court does, his
sentenée will continue. He's going back to a country that's
poor, offers very littLe-opportunities for him to make a
living, he will be separated from his family who is now in the
United States of America. His mom is a worker, his dad is a
plumbing contractor, he told you he worked for him, he's got
sohe good in him and he has no record at all, nothing,

he's -- there's nothing to show that he's ever violated any
law and the range is now 7 to 25. The legislature, Your
Honor, in its wisdom said if the charge was presented to yoﬁ
at the range of of what we're talking about, twenty-eight to a
hundred grams, that this court can consider under the
circumstances as low as 7 or as much as 25. We think, Your
Honor, that this is the kind of case that the legislature had
in mind when they set that bottom range at 7: someone who's
never been involved in drugs, someone who's never been
arrested. He has no family other than his mom and his dad,

15
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his sisters and brothers but he has no children and but he has

no children and we think that he fits in that range and we
would also think that his co-defendant fits in that range.
They just got caught up in somethin' that's bigger than.what
they are not realizin' the consequences. Certainly he knew it
was wrong but not realizing the consequences of his action.

He knows now.

THE COURT: Mr. Stewart, were you able to hear what your
lawyer just said?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you agree with what he stated?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Is there anything that you would like to say
or would like for me to know or consider?

THE OEFENDANT: I'm I'm not very éood with words, it's
the only thing I can say I'm I'm deeply and truly sorry of
that choice that I made; uh, there's just so much stuff goin'
on in my head right now. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: 1It's Alright. Thank you, sir.

(Pause.)

THE COURT: 1I'll find there's a substantial factual basis
for the plea, I'll find that each defendants' decision to
enter the plea has been made freely, voluntarily, knowingly
and intellect -- and intelligently by them, I;ll find that
each has received the services from a very competent and able
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legal counsel, services that they've indicated they're
satisfied with and have relied on in reaéhing the decisions
that they've made, therefore I will accept the pleas. On both
of the sentences for both of the gentlemen, it'll be a like
sentence for eacﬁ, the sentence of the Court is that the
defendant will be confined to the State Depaftment of
Corrections for a period of 7 years and the payment of.a
$50,000 fine, they'll each get credit for the time that
they've served. Good luck to you both.

MR. JOHNSTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. SMITH: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. MOORE: Thank Your Honor.
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(b) “Tae Teou.si0ns o AR S Tnaes X

2ons DS Fer s BRGNS W AT 1 v e ON?._.\,_»\:
(€)  The SeeTENOeg Sweer wWeuw LEFLECT CamTimemar ‘ateriaLLy DIFFCRENT ém*
NOT A WESSER TeIeUDED OFFETT
Prior 1o this application have you filed with respect to this conviction: - .
(a)  any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law? o _
(b) any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convictions
relief? aoe L _
(c) any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions,
if any, already specified in (8)? s |
(d)

any other petitions, motions or applications‘in this or any other Court? yse

1f you answered “yes” to any part of (12), list with respect to each petition, motion or
application:

—_r
(a) the specific nature thereof: g
1 Nz A :’;T.',
o
13 L
v/, =
it ~a =
=
v ada <
(b)

the name and lacation of the Court in which each was filed:
i. ~la

. ii. f\//A | ’ seeeIim s Temen e e et e e _ R SR
ii. /e
iv. A fia

(¢)  the disposition thereof:
i oda
W ok

odda

il

] Revised 32003




14,

15.

16.

17.

v,  nle

(d)  the date of each such disposition:

i ca
il. ala
.  sla
iv. u[a_‘

(e)  if known, citatians of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such,

* disposition:

il.
ii.

iv.

Has any ground set foith in (10) been previously.presented to this or any other Court,
State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?

o - . -

If you answered “‘yes” to (14) identify:

(a) which grounds have been presented:

1. N la

- [ = =
11. ;- :.: R
c o =z
iii. y < M
(b)  the proceedings in which each ground was raised: 2 o

. : :*:‘ .

e -y 5

1. AL/H_ ";; -

ada_ ~ S

iil.

If any ground set forth in (] 0) has not pre;ziously l:;::en presented 'tc; a;ly Court, State or
Federal, set forth the ground and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not
previously been presented:

(8) Phiee To TA® TIME T WAL L rThous Tue  FAATERRL EV IDENCE,
(b) AN & S LT s M areppan Buit ewee

©)  wes Liivueur MavsEcaL Sy VoENCE T STuppon

Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of:

Revised 3/2003
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(a) your arraignment and plea?
(b) your trial, if any?
(c) your sentencing? s

+» (d)  your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence? /A
(e)y - preparatiom, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or applications
' with respect to this convictian, which you filed?

18. If you answered “‘yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:
(a) the name and address of each attorney who represented you:
i. ALBERT W STy 180 MACHOLA Sv SpArTanduec £C 2030w
i. —
.
(b) the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:
1. PBEncn Toae /D SENTEwGine .
. —_—
m.,
19.  State clearly the relief y0u seek in ﬁlmg this application:
COwVviICT IO AreT SENTRENCE VACATED AnD DAmaces :'.N S\.;-s:\ ev-'Q 2.§° .cot. '*5
- oy f.'.r‘-
20. Are you now under sentence from any cther ceurt that you have not challen?ed” R
oo | : LI
< o <

5 Revised 32003
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
~ IN SUPPORT THEREOF

I, =r =, hereby apply for leave to proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or casts or
security therefor, In support of my application I declare under penalty of perjury that the
following facts are true: . ~

(1)  Tamthe applicantin this action and I believe | am entitled 1o redress.
2

Because of my poverty 1 am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give
security thereof.

Applicant
SWORN or affirmed to and subscribed before me this
[S* daYOf bLCcmL:uf L2010 .
W =
Nolary Pubdi ?E‘

My Commission Expires &

My Commission Expires: __ Qctobar 8, 2014 .

=

2

m

=

—

m

<

Revised 3/2002
1
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) - VERIFICATION
County of )
1, , being duly sworn upominy oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the forefg'aing

application; that I know the contents thereof; that itincludes every ground known to me for
vacating, setting aside or correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and
thdt the matters and allegations therein set forth are frue. X/

SWORN to and subscribed before me this {57
day of Decem by ,2e1

L L (s, ; (L)
d/ No!aryPubhd/, -

. . . Gommission Expires
My Commission Expires: Jctober 8 2014

ATMOVIT 2404 W
05:01HY &~ 02011

Revised 3/2003
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32 General Sessions
CASE HISTORY FOR CASE M088094
The State of South Carolina VS David Anthony Stewart

CASE TYPE: GS/180 Day Track
JUDGE: Cletk Of Court C P, G S, And Family Court
ARRESTING AGENCY: Spartanburg County Sheritf

FILED DATE: 6/18/2009

CASE PARTIES:

STATUS; Pled Guitty

Defendant Stewart, David Anthony

Officer Carraway, Jason

B soartonburg, SC 29303

Bond Entity Carolina Ball Bonding/Paul J. Hess, Jr./Palm
554 El Paso St, Spartanburg, SC 29303

Defendant Attorney Smith, Albert V
Attorney Ai Law. P O Box 586€, Spartanou— 8C ©0304

Solicitor Mcore, Travis

Seventh Circuit Solicitors Office, 180 Magnolia St, Spartanburg, SC 29304

Court Reporter Woods, Margaret A
P.0. Box 4305, Greenville, SC 29608

CASE HISTORY FOR CASE M088094

Stewart, David Anthony . Age: 36 < RoOB:,;
(] DL¥: S— = SN
g o Zira
Norfolk, VA S O .
. r!' ) . -.
CHARGE VIOL. DATE - DISPOSITION }‘__‘ wl plsf;!DATE
2359 Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 28 g or more,  6/16/2009 Pled Guilty o = @9l
but less than 100 g - 15t offense = o EX
SENTENCING rr:‘ = “.’i""
Sentenced - 7YRS & $50,000 FINE/ CFTS 2DYS < o <
COST ) ORIGINAL BALANCE DUE DISBURSED PAY PRIORITY
Charge: Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 28 g or more, but less than 100 g - 15
Fine to State 44% _ $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 999
Fine to General Fund - 28,000.00 28,000.00 0.00 998
Victim Services Asm 38.0013% /5.783 19,000.00 19,000.00 0.00 999
Victim Conviction Surcharge $100/$2 100.00 100.00 0.00 999
Law Enforcement Funding Surcharge $ 25.00 25.00 0.00 999
PCC Surcharge 150.00 150.00 0.00 999
SC Criminal Justice Adacemy Training 5.00 5.00 0.00 999
State Assessment 34,750.00 34,750.00 0.00 999

PrintDate:  04/19/2011
Print Time:  10:28:00AM .
Requested By: TLCAMP . CaseHistory.rpt

Page 1 of 4



SC Code: 44-53.370

i - s —— .
| on T DOCKET NO -
| m? _ FILED
i C_e WITNESSES VY Gs wl %OTQ'J LK GOty
| \ pPARTARD LG COU
| The State o‘f‘s‘etﬂl'pcar fina SPARTAN
1 s ' J90EC 10 Pit12: 37
‘ ; County %ﬁma_%bq;ﬁ 347 030
‘ SPTG CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE MARC KITCHENS
i _ ) Trey G,ow‘c.i).(,. fgilf;:_tqr.,.- -! gi
| 7 K. Utoloor— | :
| TSENTENCEMADE [ COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
5 ov 30 2008
| ——— NV 'TERM
i 4. INDEXED U
ARRES'EM’WMBER - ——
|
i 5. CHECKED SICRATUR: " THE STATE
: M088094 ::1”::__’: h vS.
| 8 TRAFFIC VIGLATION COPY ]
‘ o
| .
ACTION OF GRAND JURY
} Py s o / DAVID ANTHONY STEWART
‘ ‘. v.' ‘w’T’, i:.:j:i/l/ /{
A ~
Fore%}of rand J i
Date: 4
i e
‘ .
VERDICT . Indictment for
TRAFFICKING IN COCAINE

Foreperson of Petit Jury

Date: — —
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“ CAROLINA, (1976), as amended.

il

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on NOV 2 {' 2003

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

TRAFFICKING IN COCAINE

That David Anthony Stewart did in Spartanburg County on or about June 16, 2008,
knowingly sell, manufacture, cuitivate, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or did
provide financial assistance or did otherwise aid, abet, attempt, or conspire t_o sell,
manufacture, cultivate,'deliver, purchase or bring into this State,- or did knowingly
actually or constructively possess or did knowingly attgmpt to become in actual or

constructive possession of more than (400) four hundred grams of Cocaine, a schedule

., .-
Ve .

Il controlled substance, in violation of §44-53—370 , 7"H.E\5C5D'E OF LAWS OF SOUTH.

- ™
- =
- =
3= (==
Lo ™
" t

¢ [ wn
-
i:... ﬂ
s =
= e
m £
< =

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

ASSISTANT SOLICI i (o]

case made and provided.

the
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- AL J 13- L/ | mNRED) WARRANT STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) eI AR Y e ORIGINA..
L Emumyl D Municipality of ) 'Fg' AFFIDAVIT . -
STM 088094 Spananburg ' ) o
5 Comr OF SOUTH ccrn?ut_zr:y 3t Personally appeared before me the affiant Ja#BﬂQﬂwav #ho
D 3 " being duly swom deposes and says M[_Wb -Tfdyid ziitKony Stewart
Spartanburg ) ‘ _ did within this counly and stste on orabowt: ~g6/16/2009 - - . violele the ciminal laws of tha
; State of South Carofina (or ordinance of County/ Municipality of Spartanburg )
THE ST In the following particulars: -5 .
against N Nowing fors Zm EC b Pﬂ 3 h8
David Anthony Stewart DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 400 g or more
| Adirors __ o Hdin s oL AGRLEY
T et | fturther state that thera s probable cause to balieve that the defendant named above did eommll
ghoneM = SSN:- . the cime set forth end that probable cause ks based on the following facts: i
ex - .
DL Stater v:e DBL ry l_-leught 5—9- lWenght: 175 That on June 16, 2009, in the city/county of Spartanburg, the de endent did knowmgly traffick and bnng-.znto ﬂﬁfs_ktntei)-vq 400
. -Ya . ) —_— grams of cocaine, a schedule II controlied substance, thhom authority to do 0. 3;- (-
bos: ___ Agency ORI#  SC0420000 9 Z LE
Prosecuung ngency:  Spartanburg County Sheriff AFFIANTS BELIEF BASED ON POLICE lNVESTIGATION c_: —
Prosecuting Officer:  Jason Carraway - 0655 A
Offense: Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 400 g or more " ﬁ'ﬁ‘“ g -3
: 1 5w
Offense Code: 0281 JU“ ! '_::1 2
Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0370(e)(2) Sig of Affant — w e
iS5 warrant 18 ) - :
L ST. F Sou LINA
[ Counyr [ muricipity ot | Elmi‘:’""’ T"':Li_'lmm paity of dress 8045 Howard Street
. ' ‘ . The ecculed : Spartanburg, SC 29303-
s to Dbe amesled and brought beiore  me to be Spartanburg Affiant's Telopho-a '
dealt with according to the law. - -
0-8) ARREST WARRANT
Signaturo of Judge .
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY: g
) It - appearing from the above affidavit that there @are reasonable grounds to believe that
. RETURN )
A copy of this a mant wes dej on orabout  6/16/2009 deferdant - Devid Anthony Stewart
dofendant ¢ m did violate the criminal laws of the State of South Cardllna (or ordinance of iig}'i
» County/ Mumapaf f ) as set forth below; '
on : . %b 7E ]9 K] i 'y.o Spartanburg - v’ N /
J ST nesc_mmou OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 400 g or more \ W o
Having found probable cause and the above afffant having swom before me, you are empowered and directedi\Bribst th o
] C her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law. Acopylo!SAthamn!shaﬂbedeﬁveredlo d
soon thereafter as is practicable
RETURN WARRANT TO: Swom to and subsénbed bafore me )
General Sessions ) Judge's Address
PO porolia Street Y9 2-4 ) Spartaburg, SC 29306~ B> o
Spartanburg, SC 29304 Dwight Smith y Judges Telehoia (864)396-2564 of
. Judge Code: 7151 ) ) Igsuing Cmrl:l m Magistrate - D Municipa) D Clrouit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL
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IND]C’I'MENT/CASE#:
A/W#:  M088094

2009G54206024

Date of Offense: _6/16/2009

S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(e)

CDR Code#: 0281

SENTENCE SHEET

[J CONVICTED OF or

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (XIPLEADS

TO: Drugs / Trafficking in Cocaine, 28 g or mors, but less than 100 g - Ist offense (7-25 years and $50k)

in violation of § 44-53-0370(e) ___ofthe S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 2359

[J NON-VIOLENT  [X] VIOLENT [XJSERIOUS [ JMOST SERIOUS (JMandatory GPS(CSC 168172545

The charge is:
Theplca is

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the .

2: dayshnonthr
S0, 090) ;PYOVi

 for a determinate term of

@or to pay a fine of $
of §

0 As Indicted, [X]JLesser Included Offense, [:]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury,
i oL t Negotiations or Recommenda

IOQ(

ti 2 | 2% Sente
M A
Nofénfnni “

State Department of Corrections,

; plus costs and assessments as applicable¥; the.balance is suspended with probation for

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

(defendant's initials)

{3 County Detention Center,

] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed
at upon the service of

years
days/months/years and/or payment

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or

by the State Department of Corrections. ¢
] The Defendant s to be placed on the C

[C1 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
served pursuant t0 S.C. Code

The Defendant is to be given credit for 2%' e

Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25- 135

§ 24-13-40 to be calculated andapplied -

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or:tc-zs.@c“mm

Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition. ol = i
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: = = _,‘:;' -

[(JRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [T] Def. Waives Hearing (JOrdered  PTUP 1 (}T R

Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/ours Public ServicerEmployment .~ 15+

Payment Terms: ObtainGED  [] z ) 3 -

O Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp ZE_ ep o

May serve W/E begining o Rt

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 0 < ©® -

*Fine: . $ 6 OOO cro Kkandom Drug/Alcoho. testing 0

§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ 6 ine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weeklymonthly

§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Cony. Surcharge) $100 s pmts. of § beginning

§14-1-211(A)2) (DUI Surcharge) St _§ $ paid to Public Defender Find

§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12° $ 0 theT_—

§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25. $ ’

Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $

§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $

g 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $ ]5’0 Vol#] ] Condition Discharge, § 44-53-450(C)requires

§ 50.21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $350 be paid to the Clerk prior to case dxsposmon

§ 56-5-2942(7) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea $ (O Appointed PD or appoinse !

Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 3= (000 § 47.12 requires

§ 44-53-450(C) (Conditional Discharge) $350 § during probatiq

3%to County  (if paid in instaliments) %

TOTAL Presiding Judge

Clerk of Court/ ﬁf? M Judge Code: . ]

Court Reporter: Sentence Date: _L, / Cﬂ / /

SCCA/217 (06/2010)
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' 9TATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF SParkanbugy
Davie STewaR T IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

APPLICANT,
v CASE # m1-oR{cq
iy ,;,
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, _ o
RESPONDENT CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL
1. I AM THE ABOVE NAMED QB,@ STEW AR IN THE

ABOVE CAPTIQNED: ACTION.

2. REGULAR COMMUNICATION BY MAIL EXISTS THROUGHOUT THE
STATE OF SOQUTH CAROLINA AND THAT THIS IS A PROPER
CIRCUMSTANCE OF SERVICE BY MAIL.

IN THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED MATTER ON THE FOLLOWING PERSON(S) BY

' DEPOSITING IN THE UNITED STATES MAIL, POSTAGE PREPAID: “
- | Mdnﬁki i
U765 “TAawR q_Hee :
BO.Box 253 . | Reck 1
'—7:112 .Vil aie '
'DATED THIS_\ DAY OF g9 , 2043 .

_QZSPE Y %‘[TTED,

My Commisslon Expires: M—_&Ol 50'
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE SEVENTH CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) :
) 2011-CP-42-5359
David Anthony Stewart, #344762, )
)
Applicant, ).
)
v, ) RETURN AND MOTION
_ ) TO DISMISS
State of South Carolina, ) '
. _ )
Respondent. )
)

In response to the post-conviction relief application filed on December 5, 2011, the

Respondent would show this Court:
L

The Applicant is incarcerated w1th the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to tﬁe Spartanburg County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The Spartanburg
County Grand Jury indicted the Applicant at the November 2009 term of General Sessioﬁs for
trafficking in cocaine +400g (09-GS-42-6024). The Applicant was represented by Albert V.
Smith, Esquire. On February 9, 2011, the Applicant pled guilty to the lésser included pffense of
trafficking in cocaine 28g-100g. The Honorable J. Mark Hayes II sentenced the Applicé.nt to.
confinement, fora period of seven (7) years and ordcfed Applicant to pay a fine of $50,000. The
Applicant did not appeal his guilty p_leé or sentence.

Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the SpartanEurg Clerk of Court records,
the South Carolina Department of Corrections’ records, and the guilty plea transcript. The

Respondent reserves the right to amend this Return upon receipt of any relevant materials.
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In his application for post conviction relief the Applicant alleges that he is being held in

custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

Insufficient evidence; in that, :

a. “My arrest and seizure violates Federal and State law,”

b. *The officer making the arrest did not have a warrant or
probable cause,”

Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction; in that,

a. Indictment reflected charge for trafficking in cocaine +400g,
but Applicant was convicted and sentenced for trafficking in
cocaine 10-28g,

b. Defects in indictment.

nI.

Respondent interprets Applicant’s initial allegations as claims that there was insufficient

evidence for his conviction. Respondent moves to dismiss this allegation as improper for post-

conviction relief. S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20(a) states:

(2) Any person who has been convicted of, or sentenced for, a crime and who

(1) That the conviction or the sentence was in violation of the
Constitution of the United States or the Constitution or laws of this

State; :
(2) That the court was without jurisdiction to impose sentence;

(3) That the sentence exceeds the maximum authorized by law;

(4) That there exists evidence of material facts, not previously
presented and heard, that requires vacation of the conviction or
sentence in the interest of justice;

(5) That his sentence has expired, his probation, parole or conditional
release unlawfully revoked, or he is otherwise unlawfully held in

custody or other restraint; or

(6) That the conviction or sentence is otherwise subject to collateral-
attack upon any ground of alleged error heretofore available under any
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common law, statutory or other writ, motion, petition, proceeding or
remedy; may institute, without paying a filing fee, a proceeding under
this chapter to secure relief. Provided, however, that this section shall
not be construed to permit collateral attack on the ground that the
evidence was insufficient to support a conviction.

(emphasis added). It is clear under the statute that post-conviction relief is not the proper avenue
to attack the sufficiency of evidence. Accordingly, the Respondent therefore ‘moves for

summary dismissal of this allegation pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) (2003).

However, if the Applicant is alleging that Counsel was ineffective for failing to attack the

arrest and search as unconstitutional or invalid, Respondent would note that the Applicant pled

guilty to the charge. In PCR cases, a defendant aéserting a constitutional violation must frame

the issue as one of ineffective assistance of counsel.” Al-Shabazz v. State, 338 S.C. 354, 527

S.E.2d 742 (1999). A defendant _who pleads guilty on the advice of counsel may collaterally

attack the plea only by showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is a reasonable-

probability that but for counsel's errors, the defendant would not have pled guilty and would

have insisted on going to trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 546 S.E.2d 417 (2001). A guilty
plea is a solemn, judicial admission of the truth of the charges against the defendant. Statements
made during the plea should be considered conclusive unless the defendant presents reasons why

he should be allowed to depart from the truth of those statements. Crawford v. U.S., 519 F.2d

347 (4" Cir. 1975); Edmonds v. Lewis, 546 F.2d 566 (4™ Cir. 1976).

Furthermore, a guilty plea generally constitutes a waiver of non-jurisdictional defects and .

claims of violations of constitutional rights. See Rivers v. Strickland, 264 S.C. 121, 124, 213

S.E.2d 97, 98 (1975) (a plea of guilty constitutes a waiver of non-jurisdictional defects and
defenses, including. claims of violation of constitutional rights prior to the plea); Whetsell v.

State, 276 S.C. 295, 277 S.E.2d 891 (1981). Therefore the plea waives any non-jurisdictional

Page 3 of 6
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defects and defenses, including challenges to the sufficiency of the évidence. “Where a
defendant voluntarily, intelligently, and understandingly enters a plea of guilt, this makes it
unnecessary for the State to offer evidence to prove the offense charged in the warrant or
indictment.” State v, Allen, 261 S.C. 448, 200 S.E.2d 684, 686 (1973). This is because the
guilty plea “admits all matter of fact averments of the accusation.” Id. The defendant admits all
circumstances described in the indictment, leaving only sufficiency of the indictment for review
and waiving all other defenses. State v. Thomason, 341 S.C. 524, 534 S.E.2d 708, 709 (2000).
Additionally, PCR is not a proper avenue to c_hallenge the sufficiency of evidence. Simmons v.
State, 264 S.C. 417, 215 S.E.2d 883 (1974); S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20(a)(6).

Accordingly, the Respondent submits that these allegations must be summarily
dismissed, as the record fully supports the knowing and voluﬁtary nature of the Applicant's plea.

In addition, S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-70(c) (1985) authorizes the Court to “grant a motion by

either party for summary disposition of [z;n] application when it appears from the plea&ings -
that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment 'as. a
matter of law.” Therefore, the Respondent requests that this 'Couﬁ summarily dismiss the
Applicant’s initial allegations in the current application for post conviction relief for failure to
state a cognizable claim under the Uniform Post Cbnvictid’n Procedure Act.

Iv.

“The Applicant has claimed that the trial court lacked subject matter jurisdiction due to the
fact that he was convicted and sentenced for trafficking in cocaine 10-28g, but was indicted for
trafficking in cocaine +400g.

In post-conviction relief, an Applicant wishing to raise challenges to the sufficiency of an

indictment must do so in the context of ineffective assistance of counsel, basically alleging that
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his trial counsel failed to properly move to quash the indictment in accordance with S.C. Code
Ann. § 17-19-90 (2003). A claim of this nature is subject to the procedural bars in the Uniform
Post-Conviction Procedure Act — notably the statute of limitations and successiveness. See S.C.
Code §§ 17-27-45, -90 (2003).

An Applicant may still challenge the subject matter jurisdiction of the trial court, and

such a claim is one that may be raised at any time. See Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E.2d

846 (2001), overruled in part by Gentry, 363 S.C. 93, 610 S.E.2d 494. However, “[c]ircuit
courts obviously have subject matter jurisdiction to try criminal matters.” Génta, 363 S.C. at

101, 610 S.E.2d at 499; See also S.C. Const. Art. V, § 7. Thus, Applicant must present evidence

that his case is of some class over which the circuit court does not have the authority to preside.

Applicant’s conviction involved a criminal charge in General Sessions Court.  Thus, the circuit

court had subject matter jurisdiction.

It is clear from the face of the indictment that it was presented to the Spartanburg County
Grand Jury and “True Billed” on November 29, 2009. The Respondent submits that an

indictment will support a guilty plea for another offense provided the offense is a lesser included

‘offense of the offense charged in the indictment. State v. Cross, 323 S.C. 41, 448 S.E. 2d 569

(Ct. App. 1994); State v. Fennell, 263 S.C. 216, 209 S.E.2d 433 (1974). Trafficking in cocaine

28g-100g is a lesser included offense of trafficking in cocaine over 400 grams. Thus, it was not
necessary to neither reindict the Applicant nor have him waive presentment for his plea to

trafficking in cocaine 28g-100g. Therefore, the Respondent submits that this allegation is without

merit and should be summarily dismissed.

V.

The Respondent denies each allegation that is not expressly admitted, qualified or
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explained.

VL

WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the Respondent asks that this application be

summarily dismissed.

%&/’ 2.8 2012

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

SUZANNE H. WHITE
Assistant Attorney General

By: (( ;Wféﬁr /f/g‘

: Attomfs's for the Respondents

Office of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211
Telephone: (803) 734-3737

Page 6 of 6




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG

2011-CP-42-5359

DAVID ANTHONY STEWART, # 344762

Applicant,
AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Vs

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

Respondent.

l. [ am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this
is a proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return and Motion to Dismiss and the Proposed
Conditional Order of Dismissal in the above-captioned matter on the following person by
depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Lara Pettisé Harrill, Esquire
1539 Health Care Drive
Rock Hill, SC 29732

DATED this 25" day of September, 2012

TroyeshivBrailey, Legal Assistafit
For Respondent
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) . —
| ) 2011-CP-42-5359 = 2
David Anthony Stewart, #344762, ) :é‘ Py
) G 5
Applicant, ) ':,‘_ 3
) . o
V. ) CONDITIONAL ORDER OF DISl\é}SS.E
| ) ™
State of South Carolina, ; A
Respondent. )
)

This matter comes before this Court by way of an application for post-conviction relief filed
December 5, 2011. Respondent made its Return and Motion to Dismiss on or about Septembei- 28,
2012.

1. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Applicant is. incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to the
Spartanburg County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The Spartanburg County Grand Jury
indicted the Applicant at the November 2009 term of General Sessions for trafficking in cocaine +400g
(09-GS-42-6024). The Applicant was représented by Albert V. Smith, Esquire. Oh February 9,2011, the
Applicant pled guilty to the lesser included offense of trafficking in cocaine 28g-100g. The Honorable J.

Mark Hayes II sentenced the Applicant to confinement, for a period of seven (7) years and ordered

| Applicant to pay a fine of $50,000. The Applicant did not appeal his guilty plea or sentence.

Applicant’s Current PCR Application
In his current application for post conviction relief the Appliéant alleges that he is being held in
custody unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. Insufficient evidence; in that,
a. “My arrest and seizure violates Federal and State law,”"
b. “The officer making the arrest did not have a warrant or probable

Page 1 of 4 %f{
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cause,”
Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction; in that,

a. Indictment reflected charge for trafficking in cocaine +400g, but

Applicant was convicted and sentenced for trafficking in cocaine 10-
28g,

b. Defects in indictment.

Before this Court are the records of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court regarding the subject

convictions, the Applicant's records from the South Carolina Department of Corrections, Applicant’
PCR application and Respondent’s Return and Motion to Dismiss.
IL. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Failure to State a Claim
This Court finds that this application should be summarily dismissed for failure to state a claim

cognizable under the Post-Conviction Procédure Act, S.C, Code Ann. § 17-27-10 et seq. (1976). S.C
Code Ann. § 17-27-20(a) states:

(a) Any person who has been convicted of or sentenced for, a crime andi who. claims

(3) That the sentence exceeds the maximum authorized by law;

0 i
:; = :"l -
(1) That the conviction or the sentence was in violation of the Constltuuon: PSS
of the United States or the Constitution or laws of thls State; g 9
re.
: ot g
(2) That the court was without jurisdiction to impose sentence; . L =
. ("\_.
&
~N

-
-
3

il's .

(4) That there exists evidence of material facts, not previously presented and

heard, that requires vacation of the conviction or sentence in the interest of
justice;

(5) That his sentence has expired his probation, parole or conditional release

'unlawfully revoked, or he is otherwnse unlawfully held in custody or other
restraint; or

(6) That the conviction or sentence is otherwise subject to collateral attack
upon any ground of alleged error heretofore available under any common
law, statutory or other writ, motion, petition, proceeding or remedy; may
institute, without paying a filing fee, a proceeding under this chapter to
secure relief, Provided, however, that this section shall not be construed

7
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to permit collateral attack on the ground that the evidence was
insufficient to support a conviction.

(emphasis added). It is clear under the statute that post-conviction reliefis not the proper avenue

to attack the sufficiency of evidence.

Furthermore, a guilty plea generally constitutes a waiver of non-jurisdictional defects and claims
of violations of constitutional rights. See Rivers v, Strickland, 264 S.C. 121, 124,213 S.E2d 97,98

(1975) (a plea of guilty constitutes a waiver of non-jurisdictional defects and defenses, including claims

of violation of constitutional rights prior to the plea); Whetsell v. State, 276 S.C. 295, 277 S.E.2d 891
(1981). Therefore the plea waives any non-jurisdictional defects and defenses, in'éluding challenges td
the sufficiency of the evidence. “Where a defendant voluntarily, intelligently,: and understandingl&
enters a plea of guilt, this makes it unnecessary for the State to offer evidence to prove the offense
charged in the warrant or indictment.” State v. Allen, 261 S.C. 448,200 S.E.2d 684, 686 (1973). This
is because the guilty plea “admits all matter of fact averments of the accusation.” 1d. The defendant
admits all circumstances described in the indictment, leaving only sufficiency of the indictment for
review and waiving all other defenses. State v, Thomason, 341 S.C. 524,534 S.E.2d 708 709 é‘ZOOQ)

Additionally, PCR is not a proper avenue to challenge the sufficiency of ev1dence Slm

264 S.C. 417,215 S.E.2d 883 (1974); S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20(a)(6). : _

Additionally, this Court finds that the Applicant hes failed to state a claim as it felaté®to hi:s .
issue with the indictment regarding the lesser-included offense. Anindictment will sqppog-ﬁ guﬁ/ plgéi—‘.
for another offense provided the offense is a lesser included offense of the offense charged in the
indictment. State v. Cross, 323 S.C. 41, 448 S.E. 2d 569 (Ct. App. 1994); State v. Fennell, 263 S.C.
216,209 S.E.2d 433 (1974). This Court finds that trafficking in cocaine 28g-1 OOg'is a lesser included

offense of trafficking in cocaine over 400 grams and therefore, the court had the jurisdiction to accept

Applicant’s plea. Therefore, this Court finds that the application should be summarily dismissed for

/'/
Page3of4  / /
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failure to state a claim cognizable in post-conviction relief.

S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-70(c) (2003) authorizes the Court to "grant a motion by either party for
summary disposition of [an] application when it appears from the pleadings ... th;at there is no genuine
issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law." Therefore, this
Court finds that the application for post-conviction relief is summarily dismissed for failure to state a
claim cognizable in post-convictipn relief. |

Summary

Putsuaﬁt to S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-70(b), the Court intends to dismiss this Application with
prejudice unless the Applicant provides specific reasons, factual or legal, why the Application should
not be dismissed in its entirety. The Applicant is granted twenty (20) days from the date of service of
this Order upon him to show why this Order shouid not become final. The Applicant shall file any

reasons he may have with the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court and shall serve opposing counsel at

x 8 3
the following address: > R pIE
S |\
Suzanne H. White, Esquire o B
Office of the Attorney General oo RN
P.0. Box 11549 TR wac
Columbia, SC 29211 2 3¢,
2y ;- -
~ N

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this _, 7§ #Gay of W Zes 2012, ' =z

rayesH ?oqer/\. (‘auc‘-/x
pnisEra=nise — Common Pleas

, South Carolina

Page 4 of 4
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MS. WHITE: Thank you, Your Honor.

This 1is the case of David Stewart vs. the State. It's
case No. 2011-CP-42-5359. He's represented today by
Mr. Jordan Ca116way;

Mr. Stewart was indicted November of 2009 for
trafficking in cocaine over 400 grams. He was represented
by Albert smith and pled guilty February 9th of 2011 to the
lesser included of trafficking 28 to a hundred grams and
received a sentence of seven years and a $50,000 fine.

He's alleged ineffective assistance of counsel and a
Tack of subject matter jurisdiction in that counsel failed
to investigate the illegal arrest and illegal search and
seizure based on problems with the warrant and that counsel
failed to request video tape from the officer's car.

And I will note the state had originally filed a
return and motion to dismiss based on the failure to state
a claim. But once Mr. Stewart had responded some we felt
that he had alleged claims of ineffective assistance of
counsel that probably needed to have a hearing, and so
that's why we're having a hearing today.

And I will turn it to Mr. Calloway.

MR. CALLOWAY: Good morning, Your Honor.

At this time I'd 1ike to call David Anthony Stewart to
the stand.
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David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. calloway

DAVID ANTHONY STEWART, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. CALLOWAY

Q Good morning, Mr. Stewart. would you please state

.} your full name for the Court?

A David Anthony Junior Stewart.

Q Mr. Stewart, we're here today regarding a P.C.R.
application that you filed, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q wWould you tell the Court the basis why you think you
should believe or you believe you should receive post
conviction relief?

A on a lot of reasons. One was the officer made a
statement that he was doing -- he was doing a traffic
routine and when he got to the hotel he saw her sitting on
the bench.

He didn't approach us and ask us, you know, if we
drove the vehicle or anything. And he waited until we go
into that room and came out. Wwhen he came up there he and
some more officers came into the room and took my
codefendant out and had me back. When I asked him if I was
under arrest or any other question, he didn't respond to
it. |
Q Did they show you a warrant or offer you anything

before they came into the room?
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David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. Calloway

A No, sir. And I just told issue with Mr. Ssmith, and he
never looked into it.
Q okay. Tell me, Mr. Stewart. How did you come to --
how did Mr. -- how did he become your Tawyer?
A while we was in the county my codefendant -- I guess
he was talking to some other guys that was in the county
and recommend him -- to recommend my client to Mr. Smith --
that he could get 1in touch with him, he's a good Tlawyer,
stuff 1ike that. '

so based on the time we had to go back in front of the
judge he told me this guy, contact, and see what's going
on.
Q And so you believe that there was not -- that the
search was ‘improper.
A Yes.
Q Did you discuss this with Mr. smith?
A Yes.
Q okay. Wwhat did he tell you about the possibility, how
you could challenge that?
A He said we would -- we had to hire a dog expert or --
or I forgot the term he used -- someone to look at the
video and determine if the dog was credible and reliable.
Q okay. And did he retain an expert on your behalf?
A No, sir.

Q Did you discuss with him -- the possibility of




O &0 N O VT A W N R

N NN N NN R R e

David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. calloway

retaining an expert with him?

A We spoke about that. And when it gets to the day of
trial, which ended up turning into a plea, he told me the
guy wasn't going to make it. He was somewhere in Texas or
something like that. |

Q Now, Mr. Stewart, do you recall also saying in your
application that the Court lacked subject matter

jurisdiction for your case?

correct.

Tell the -- tell the Court what you meant by that.
Oone was --

Let me -- let me ask a more specific question.
okay.

were you indicted on any offense related to this case?
on the paperwork, no, sir.

okay. You were never indicted on any offense.

> 0 P O P> O P O P>

No, sir.

| okay. what was your understanding of the charge that
had been brought against you?

A To make -- to be clear I'm not familiarizing the law
and stuff 1ike that. I just started doing my own research
as I been incarcerated. And as I'm going through the
paperwork it was brought to my attention that when I Tlooked
at the terms lesser included offense and I was wondering

why I got a second violent and not the lesser included,
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David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. Calloway

which is a P.W.I.D., and I was like that's one other issue
was hot fair to me. I never been in trouble before. I
always work. I pay tax.

You know, the truth of the matter is my codefendant,
he wasn't going to'come to court at that moment. And he
said he was going to take the plea. And I always told
Mr. Albert what if my codefendant tdok ownership of it. He
said no, they want both of y'all. That was the deal.

Q Did you discuss with your attorney the possibility of
going to trial?

A He said they was going to roast me.

Q okay. And what -- did you understand what he meant by
that?

A I was going to get the full maximum, which would be
25.

Q when you -- when -- before the plea hearing were you
comfortable with pleading guilty to this charge?

A No, sir.

Q why not?

A Because I didn't know I was going to plead to that
charge at that moment. That just came out of nowhere.

Q what do you mean by that?

A wWhen I came to Spartanburg I was told that we was
going to trial, and I felt pretty much confident that, you

know, something could work out. But when I spoke to him




O 0 N O v b W N

N NN N NN MR B RB B R
O A w N RO GGRERETS

David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. Calloway

the other following day he told me the dog-expert gluy
wasn't going to show up. And that's who we was relying on.
And that he came to me and told me about the seven -- he
say five, but it's seven years.

Q | You -- you mentioned earlier a video tape. Tell the
Court what this video tape was that you were looking for.

A Just to show proof that the officer was on the highway
trying to get in pursuit to pull the vehicle over and, you
know, just a regular traffic violation.

He said we was following too closely and was changing
Tanes and all of that in traffic first. The video I got
from Mr. smith only showed the officer pulled up behind the
vehicle and then came out up with the dog and walked around
the car twice.

Q And what did Mr. smith tell you about this video tape,
if anything?

A He said he just had to give it to the expert and let
them take a Took at it, he would have to hire expert to
look at the video. |

Q Did he tell that you he ever had or did not have this
video tape or that he'd asked for it or not asked for it?
A He had -- he had it, and he gave me a copy.

Q Are there any other ways that you feel that Mr. Smith
was ineffective in éssisting you as your counsel?

A Yes.

6]
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David Anthony Stewart
Direct examination by Mr. Calloway

okay. could you describe those for the Court?
A lot of the -- I'm sorry. I'm kind of nervous.

That's okay.

> O >» 0O

okay. I Tlived in New York for quite some times. So
he will call me and tell me we got court appearances and
stuff 1ike that. And it's a hell of a -- it's a stretch
coming all the way down here.

so when I do come down here he told me they postpone

court. And when I asked him if anything come across your

desk let me know and stuff like that, he would tell me no
news is good news. I said okay.

so he led me to believe he had total control over the
situation, but then I started getting calls. from him say he
losing -- he lost this trial, he lost this trial. So I
felt Tike he could have did better.
Q Mr. stewart, if -- if Mr. smith had done the things
that you requested or the things that you talked about here
this morning do you feel 1ike you would have pled guilty to
the charge that you pled guilty to?
A Pardon me? '

Q If Mr. smith had done the things that we've discussed

here this morning, the things that you've just spoken

about, do you feel that you would have pled guilty to the
charge you ultimately pled guilty to?
A I wouldn't have pled guilty.
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David Anthony Stewart )
Cross-examination by Ms. white

Q Okay. why not?

A Because he had me believe that he could have did his
job to his best and often -- he just withdraw from me. And
I just -- it's just confused me the whole time.

He kept -- he told me I'm still young, it's seven
years, it's not going to be so bad and -- excuse me. He
told me that if I pled and take this seven years I'm still
young and I'11 be out. So I asked him. I said if you go
to trial there's nbthing you could have did, I couldn't get
parole, probation or anything. He said no.

MR. CALLOWAY: Thank you, Your Honor. Nothing
further.

MS. WHITE: Just a few brief questions.

| CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. WHITE

Q Mr. Stewart, the judge went over a lot of things with

you on the day of your guilty plea.

Yes, ma'am.

Do you reca]T most of the day?

No, ma'am.

what -~ some of the things he said to you?

No, ma'am.

So do you recall that the judge said that if you plead
guilty you're giving up the right to present evidence that

could be a possible defense to these charges?

10
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David Anthony Stewart i
Cross-examination by Ms. white

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And you said you understood that and wanted to give up
that right.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q okay. And when he said that -- he also explained that
this was a plea to, as they said, the lesser included of
trafficking cocaine 28 to a hundred grams. You said you
understood that and that that's what you intended to enter
the plea to. |

A Yes.

Q okay. But you say today that you after reading some
do not believe that that is a lesser included of the
trafficking over 4007 |

A Correct. Can I add it? He coerced me that I don't
have to get the seven years, if I go in there and not
answering and say what I suppose to say the judge could
change his decision on my sentence, so for my best interest
just agree and go along with whatever the judge is asking.
Q okay. And-but you did have conversation when the
judge asked with you about your family status and you going
to school. You had conversations with him --

A Yes, ma'am.

Q -- in the Court. Okay. So you just didn't answer yes
or no to everything. And they did tell the Court that you

had no prior record.

11
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David Anthony Stewart .
Cross-examination by Ms. white

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Right? And talked with you about the fact that this
was going to be considered both a violent and a serious
offense. And, in fact, you agreed with the facts when they
were presented and said you are guilty, is that correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q okay. So had you gone to trial on the original charge
of trafficking 400 plus you were facing a minimum of 25 to
30, is that right?

A No. He said 25. He didn't mention the 30.

Q Okay. But you would definitely get 25, is what he
told you, if you were convicted of the trafficking over
400.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q okay. And is that why -- one of the reasons you
wanted to plead guilty to this lesser offense, was to be
able to have the option of less time?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q okay.k And, in fact, the seven years is the minimum
for this charge, is that right? Are you aware of that?

A Right, yes.

Q okay. A1l right. And is your testimony today that
you would have rather gone to trial for the trafficking of
400 instead of pleading guilty to this charge unless, you
know, Mr. smith had talked with you about some of these

12
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David Anthony Stewart
Redirect examination by Mr. calloway

defenses you would have -- you wanted that risk?
A well, my codefendant and me -- when I and my
codefendant was speaking about it and he said that he was
going to take the responsibility for 1it, yes, at that
moment I would have went on to trial.
Q okay. But that's contingent on the fact that you were
hoping he would testify and take responsibility.
A Yes, ma'am.
Q okay. A1l right.
MS. WHITE: I think thét's all I have, Your Honor.
MR. CALLOWAY: 3Just a couple, Your Honor, briefly.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CALLOWAY
Q Mr. Stewart, did you tell Mr. smith that your

codefendant told you he intended to take responsibility for

the drugs?

A Yes, sir.

Q okay. what was his response to that?
A well, repeat that question. 1I'm sorry.
Q what was his response to that?

A Not repeat the question?

The question was did you talk with Mr. smith about
your codefendant agreeing to take responsibility for the
drugs. '

A Yes.

13
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David Anthony Stewart
Redirect examination by Mr. Calloway

Q okay. what was his response to that?

A He said they wanted both of us, that was the deal.

Q You went over on cross-examination some of the
statements that you -- that are made in the plea
tranécript. Do you remember that?

A No, sir. _

Q oh, well, do you remember going over that this morning
on cross-examination?

A Yes. _

Q okay. And now is it your testimony today that the
reason that you made the statements that you made there is
because -- well, what was the reason that you made the
statements that you made in the plea-transcript hearing?
A what was the question?

Q was it your testimony this morning that you were just
going along with what your Tawyer told you to do?

Yes, sir.

Okay.

Could I add something else?

Yes, sir.

> O P O »

Oon my way here to_Spartanburg I didn't know anything
about a plea until that Wednesday morning -- until that
Tuesday -- Tuesday evening, Tuesday night, because my
codefendant, he wasn't going to show up.

And I was told. I was instructed by Mr. sSmith that I

14
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Albert V. smith’ .
Direct examination by Ms. white

had that hearing that Monday morning and he wasn't going to
show. And I talked to him and I talked to him and I talked
to him; and I said you got a family and everything. And
then he just come to reality like, and I didn't mean to get
involved and all of this.

And Mr. smith picked him up, and we came here. He was
still talking about it. And he was like I'm sorry, saying
I didn't mean to get you involved. And Mr. smith kept
saying the dea] was for both of y'all when I spoke to him,
because he came in and me and Mr. Smith was still back in
the office for quite some time.

Q A1l right. Thank you.

MR. CALLOWAY: Nothing further.

MS. WHITE: Nothing further from the state.

THE COURT: You may step down.

MR. CALLOWAY: Your Honor, I have no additional

‘withesses at this time.

MS. WHITE: Your Honor, the state would call Albert

smith to the stand.
ALBERT V. SMITH, having been

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. WHITE

Q Mr. smith, were you retained in this case to represent
Mr. Stewart?

A I was.

15
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Albert v. smith_ ]
Direct examination by Ms. white

Q And do you recall having a conversations with him
about the situation and the facts of the case involving his
codefendant as well?

A we did.

Q And what was your take on the -- the evidence or the
video that he says he thought should have had additional, I
guess, video of the traffic Stop?

A We had all the video given to us by the solicitor's
office.

We engaged -- and I say we. I'm talking about Andrew
Johnston and Gerald wilson. They represented Mr. David
Doug1és.

we engaged the services of Steven Nicely out of Buda,
Texas. We sent all of the videos to Mr. Nicely. And that
was prior to -- after a preliminary hearing and/but before
a motion-to-quash hearing -- hearing on that.

And we engaged in conversations with Mr. Buda [sic],
and we were told that the tapes did not show really any
violation of the law. And he couldn't tell much about the
dog. The K-9 dog was supposed to have hit on the car.

And we talked about that at length with Mr. Stewart
because he was reluctant. He's telling the truth there.
when he came here the day of the hearing it was either
going to be a trial and/or plea. He was very reluctant to

accept the plea.

16
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Albert V. smith ]
Direct examination by Ms. white

He was here long before David Douglas was here. He
says that David Douglas was going to accept responsibility.
David Douglas didn't even show up. Wwe had to talk him into
coming from -- that it was in his best interest to take the
seven years. We had to talk him into coming.

And he came in by airplane, and I did go pick him up
and brought him in. But the seven years was the best that
we could do with 400 grams of cocaine.

Q And did you talk with him about the fact that this was
a lesser +included offense?
A we did, and I never heard anything about David Douglas

accepting responsibility for it. Andy Johnston didn't tell

me that and Gerald wilson didn't tell me that.

Q And in regards to taking responsibility for it, they

were both in the car, is that correct?

A They were in the car, but I did feel and I do feel
that probably Mr. bDouglas was more comfortable than

Mr. Stewart. I think Mr. Stewart was a drag-along.

Q okay.

A But obviously he was in the drag-along for the wrong
reasons, I thought.

Q And when it came to presenting a defense of possession
of the drugs was there anything that you thought y'all were
going to be able to do to counteract the fact that they

were found in the car with that amount of drugs?

17
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Albert v. smith )
Direct examination by Ms. white

A we did all we could do by hiring Mr. Nicely out of
Texas to review what we had. Hopefully, if he had been
favorable to us we would have used him at the trial.

Q Okay. Is it accurate? He said that on the day of

trial he was told that the witness was not going to be able

to make it from Texas. _
A The witness was not coming because we weren't going to
pay for him to come because of what he was saying.

Q okay. so --

A He was not coming.

Q He was not -- he was never planned to come because it
was not providing anything to the defense.

A After we lost the motion to quash the indictment we
made a decision that we would not invite Mr. Nicely to come
because of the information We got from him would not aid
and assist us in the defense of that case.

Q okay.

A of those two cases.

Q And in your conversations with him obviously you said

he was reluctant to enter the plea, but knowing what we -

| could potentially receive at trial versus what -- what he

was being able to plead to, did you feel 1ike he was
pleading ultimately freely and voluntarily?
A Yes. I encouraged him to take the plea, but I never

put any pressure on him to take it. A trial I think would

18
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Albert v. smith
Cross-examination by Mr. calloway

have been most detrimental to him based upon what they had.
Q okay. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
A And I did tell him that -- you know, the deal might go
to David Douglas, might get David. And he was reluctant to
plead guilty, and David Douglas pled guilty. A deal might
go to David Douglas who was the driver of the car.
Q okay. But ultimately they both pled guilty on that
day.
A They both did, sure.
Q Thank you.

MS. WHITE: That's all I have, Your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATTION
BY MR. CALLOWAY
Q Good morning, Mr. smith. A couple of questions for
you. |
A Yes, sir.
Q You mentioned Mr. Nicely, the proposed expert that you
contacted.
A That's correct.
Q okay. And his testimony or his opinion was not
favorable to the defense. |
A It was not going to be very persuasive, what he told
us about the dog.
Q okay. Now, when you say persuasive, do you mean it

was not favorable to you, or you didn't feel he would --

19
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Albert V. Smith
cross-examination by Mr. cCalloway

A It was not strong testimony coming from Mr. Nicely
about the dog, whether or not the dog's proper training --
had proper training and whether or not the dog properly hit
on the car.

Q Did you discuss Mr. Stewart's case with any other
potential experts?

A No. That was the only one we talked about.

Q were there other potential experts with whom you could
have spoken perhaps to --

A I'm sure there were, but Mr. Nicely was the one we
thought was the best in the business for us. And we paid
for him to look at what we sent to him.

Q Is it your testimony that Mr. Stewart did not tell you
that Mr. Douglas informed him he intended to take

responsibility for these drugs?

A Mr. Stewart was disappointed in that that did not
happen. And certainly he did tell me that, but David
bouglas did not indicate he would do that. He didn't even

come. He wasn't even here.

'Q Did you do anything additionally to investigate the

veracity of Mr. Stewart's statement that his codefendant

|was taking responsibility for the drugs?

A wWe did everything we could do. I went to the scene.
we drove the route that the officers said that he had

driven.

20
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Albert v. sSmith
Cross-examination by Mr. Calloway

We motioned to dismiss the indictment because we
thought that it was a targeted stop, and to this day I
still believe that. Wwe had a hearing on that, and we lost
it. And so at that point in time they came with a deal far
less than what he was charged with, and we encouraged him
to take 1it.

Q And what about specifically relating to Mr. Stewart's
statements about his codefendant? Did you do anything
additionally to investigate the veracity of that statement?
A No. I was in contact with their lawyer, with his
lawyer. He had two of them -- Gerald wilson and Andy
Johnston. And they never told me that David Douglas was

going to accept responsibility and exonerate Mr. Stewart.

‘Q Did you -- could you have asked for a continuance to

«do some further investigation into the veracity of this

statement?

A I don't think we would have gotten a continuance.
Certainly I could have asked, yes. But I don't know what
else I could have found out. I mean, we had lost the
motion. Wwe'd talked to the expert. we'd looked and
reviewed all the evidence presented to us including video
evidence. And at no time unfi] this day have I heard

Mr. Douglas say he didn't know about the cocaine being in
the car.

Q would you agree though that --

21
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Albert v. smith )
Cross-examination by Mr. calloway

A Mr. Stewart. I'm sorry.

Q No problem. would you agree though that it would have
been beneficial to Mr. Stewart's case if you could confirm
that his codefendant intended to take responsibility for
the drugs?

A well, he was here and he knew what was going on. And
never did I hear that pavid Douglas was going to accept
responsibility.

Q Mr. Stewart didn't tell you that?

A No, sir. And I knew better because we had encouraged
-- Douglas had come to accept the deal. we thought it was

in his best interest to do that.

-Q okay. But if he had told you that would you have
done -- do you think you should have done investigation of

that?

A well, sure we would have. But the decision to plead
and take responsibility doesn't mean that he was going to
be exonerated.
Q No. Of course not.
A I don't know that the solicitor would have bought
that.

There were things going on -- the pretextual sfop, we
attacked that. But the solicitor had this on David Douglas
and David Stewart.

They were coming from Atlanta in a rental car, and we
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believed that's why they were stopped. They came in the
rental car. They both were dressed in overalls as if they
were mechanics. And I think one or both of them told the
officers they were mechanics but told different stories
about where they were coming from and where they were
going.

Q Did you discuss with Mr. Stewart the circumstances
under which the officers searched their hotel room?

A Sure, we did.

Q Did he discuss with you whether -- well, what was your
understanding as to why the police officers came into the

room?

A I think it was a pretextual stop and they thought

there was drugs in that car. I really do.

Q okay.

A For no other reason. It wasn‘t stop -- it wasn't
changing lanes, 1mpropeb change, lane changing. Did not
show up on any tape.

Q okay. And so you saw the video tape and there was --
in your opinion, your legal opinion, there was no
justification for the officers to stop them.

A Absolutely.

Q could you have challenged that at trial?

A We did challenge it before trial, sure.
Q

But at trial as well could you have --

23




W 0 N O v b W N

NONON N NN B R R R e
O P NN obboeaakhRLRRESE

Albert v. Smith
cross-examination by Mr. Calloway

we could have.
-- tried to exclude the evidence?
we could have.

Did you discuss that with Mr. Stewart?

> 0 > O >

No, we didn't discuss that with Mr. Stewart, but I did
discuss -- we was present when we had the hearing to
exclude that evidence -- him and Mr. Douglas both.

MR. CALLOWAY: Your Honor, I have no further
questions.
'Ms. WHITE: The state has nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Step down.

MS. WHITE: The state has no other witnesses, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: Anything further?
MR. CALLOWAY: Nothing further at this time, Your

‘Honor.

THE COURT: I'11 review the transcript and issue an

order.
END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
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CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned Linda D. Moffitt, offigial Court
Reporter for the Seventh Judicial Circuit of the State of

-South Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a

true, accurate and complete Tfanscript of Record of all the
proceedings had and evidence introduced in the trial of the
captioned cause, relative to appeal, in the Common Pleas
Court for Spartanburg County, South Carolina, on the 30th
day of September 2013.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel

nor interest to any party hereto.

June 24, 2014

Linda D. Moffitt
Circuit Court Reporter
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  INTHE COURT OF COAMDR 2iHAS
: ) SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) : '
, . ) _8.C. SUPREME COURT
David Anthony Stewart, #344762, ) 2011-CP-42-5359
: )
Applicant, )
v. ) ORDER OF DISMISSAL
. )
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of an Application for Post-Conviction Relief
filed December S, 2011. The Respondent made its Return and Motion to Dismiss on or about

September 28, 2012. - A Conditional Order of Dismissal was served on October 1, 2012

%
Following Apphcant s response’ to the Conditional Order, Respondent set the ﬁatter fo%

hearing. An evidentiary hearing into the matter was convened on September 30, mll&%t t@ -
Spartanburg County Courthouse. The Apphcant was present at the hearmg and was $epr te‘ij,’) c.'

by Jordan C. Calloway, Esqune Suzanne H. White, Esquire, of the South CarohnFAttg&m

" General’s Ofﬁce represented the Respondent.

At the hearmg, the Applicant testified on his own-behalf. Albert V.. Smith, Esquire, also

test:ﬁcd This Court also had before it a copy of the records of the Spartanburg County Clerk of

-~ Court regarding_the subject convictions, Applicantfs records from the South Carolina Department

of Corrections, the Return, and the plea transcript.
PROCEDURAL HISTORY
The Applicant is incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of. Cormrections .

pursuant to the Spartanburg County Clerk-of Court’s orders of commitment. The Spartanburg

| @v{g'elofs
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County Grand Jury indicted the Applicant at the November 2009 term of General Sessions for

trafficking in cocaine +400g (09-GS-42-6024). The Applicant was represented by Albert V.

Smith, Esquire. On Febru_ary 9, 2011, the Applicant pled guilty to the lesser included offense of
trafficking in cocaine 28g-100g. The Honorable J. Mérk Hayes II sentenced the Applicant to

confinement, for-a period of seven (7) years and ordered Applicant to pay a fine of $50,000. The
Applicant did not appeal his guilty plea or sentence.

ALLEGATIONS |
In his apﬁlicaiion and response to the Conditional Order of Dismissal, the Applicant

alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the following reasons:
I.

Insufficient evidence; in that,

a. “My.arrest and seizure violates Federal and State law,”

b. “The officer making the arrest did not have a warrant or
probable cause,” ‘ '

x 2 52
2. Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction; in that, 3 9 234
a. Indictment reflected charge for trafficking in cocaine +400g, ™ 'R ° Rof
but Applicant was convicted and sentenced for trafficking in £ o 2ao0
cocaine 28-100g, B xE o2
b. Defects in indictment | g ™ 83
3. Ineffective assistance of counsel, in that; 7o =
a. Counsel failed to investigate, =
b. Counsel failed to move for production of audio and videotape
from officer’s car,

¢. Counsel failed to. move to suppress the evideiice found in the: -
hotel because of Fourth Amendment violations.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW o
This Court has had ihe opportunity to review the record m its entirety and has heard the
testimony and arguments presented at the PCR hearing. This éourt has further had the
opportunity to observe each-witness who testified at the hearing, and to closely pass upon their
ci'edibility. This Court has w.eigh'ed. the tesﬁmony accordingly. ‘Set forth below are the relevant

findings of fact and conclusions of law as _required by 8.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80 (2003).

@;ﬁzom



Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

The Applicant alleges he received ineffective zissist;a.nce of counsel. In a PCR action,
“[t]he burden of proof is on the applicant to prove his allegations by a preponderaﬁce of the
‘evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. .385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002) (citing Rule 71.1(e),
SCRCP). %ew ineffective assxstance of counsel i§ alleged as a ground for relief, the _Appiicant
mist prove that "co;msel's conduct s'c.> undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial
. ptoceés that the trial cannot be relied upén as having prodﬁced. a just result.” Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2064, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 692 (1984) M_L_Siagg

286 5.C. 441, 334 SE2d 813 (1985)

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provid&i' representation

within the range of 'competence required in criminal cases. Courts presume that counsel
rendered’ adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise g reﬁn

professnonal Judgment Butler Id. The Applicant must overcome this presumptn@ to%

relief. Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989). E - g"
; > 2 2
First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was deﬁclent nde,? thﬁ‘.
N i

prong, attomey performance is measured by its "reasonableness under professxonal norms e
Cherry, 300 S.C. at .117, 385 S.E.2d at 625, citing Strickland. Second, counsel's deficient
performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that "thére is a reasonable probability that,
but for counsel's unprofessional e'rrors, the result of the proceeding would have been dif‘feren_t."
Q‘m,. 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A reasonable probabilit.y is a .proBabi]ity
sufficient to undermine confidence in the oufcome of trial.” Johhsog v. State; 325 S.C. 182, 186,
4805.8.24 733, 735 (1997) (citing Stzickland).

Applicant testified that he was arrested when the police followed him into a hotel, but

Pagé 3 0f 9
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. . Applicant testified he never saw a warrant and believed the search was improper. Applicant

testified that he was advised on the day of trial that their expert witness, who was hired to attack
the qualifications and training of the drug dog, did not appear. Applicant also testified that the
videotape evxdence from the officer’s car only showed the pohce pulling up behind the car at the
hote! and the dog walkmg around the car, but dld not show the entire trip of the Applicant’s car.
Apphcant also tesuﬁed that he was never indicted for the charge of trafficking i in cocaine 10-28
grams and does not believe that it is a lesser-included offense of trafficking in cocaine +400
grams. Applicant testified that he believed the. lesser-included offense should have been a
posscssioﬁ with intent to distribute. Applicant alsq testified thaf the co-dt;,fendant had agreed to
accept responsibility for all of the drugs. Applicant testified that Counsel advised him he would
receivé a senten;;e of twenty-five years if he proééeded to trial. Abplicant testified that prior to
trial he was out on bond and located i inNew York, but felt that Counsel was not dou:lé exg:gli&r;

his case. Applicant testified that he would not have pled guilty except for the fact ﬂ%he@ouﬂg
D e
™ o B i

Counsel was not prepared for trial. ' : @ @ ST
| | > 3 ogc
Counsel testified that he was retained to represent the Applicant on the char% q-g;msggg

testified that he had the entire video of the stop. Counsel also testified that he had T o
expert from Texas to review the training procedures. for- the drug dog. However, Counsel
testified that the expert's testimony would not be favorable to Applicant’s defense, so Counsel
did not subpoena the expex:t to testify. Counsel testified that he filed a motion to qua's.h the
indictment, but lost that motion. Counsel testified that the Applicant was present for the hearing
- on the motion to quash and suppress evidence. Counsel testified ihat Applic;ant never informed -
him that tﬁe co-defendant was going to accept r"espoxisibility. In fact, Counsel testified that he

. never received any indication from the co-defendant’s attorneys that the co-defendant would
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accept a plea. The co-defendant barely showed up for his plea. Counsel testified that he knew
that the Applicant was reluctant to plead guilty, but chose to plead guilty once the charge was
reduced and he faced seven to twenty-five years, rather than a minimum of twenty-five.

This Court finds the testimony of Counsel to be more credii:le that the testimony of the

" Applicant. The Applicant's allegation that Counsel did not conduct an 'ad.equz'ate pre-trial

investigation is without merit. Follewing testimony and review of the transcript, it is clear that
Counsel had reviewed the facts and evidence, as well as the options that Applicant faced. It is
also clear that Counsel consulted with the Applicant and discussed various defenses and attacks

on the State’s evidence. The "brevity of time spent in consultation, without more, does not

establish that counsel was ineffective.” Easter v. Estelle, 609 F.2d 756, 759 (5th Cir. 1980): To

establish counsel was inadequately prepared, an Applicant must present evidence of what |

counsel could have dxscovered or what other defenses could have been pursued hadzcou%el E&g .
more fully prepared. Jackson v. State, 329 S.C. 345, 495 S.E.2d 768 (1998); kee@; B 5 _ﬂf ,
S.C."210, 481 S.E.2d 129 (1997) (applicant not entitled to relief where 110 wxdence;regxteéiﬁ :
PCR hearing to show how additional preparauon would have had any possible &ect::\%n %?? ,L"

?
result at trial). The Apphcant failed to point to any specific matters Counsel falled‘tG dmoow;";2
or any meritorious defenses that could have been pursued had Counsei been more ﬁ.ﬂly prepared.

Furthermore, the Apphcant faﬂed to show any prejudlce that may have resulted from Counsel’s

: a]leged madequate preparation. Accordmg]y, this allegation is dlsmlssed

In Hill v. Lockhg, 474 U.S. 52 (1985), the Umted States Supreme Court held that-the

two-part standard adopted in Strickland. v. Washmggoq, supra, for evaluating claims’ of
ineffective assistance of counsel applies, as well, to guilty plea challenges based on ineffective

assistance of counsel. To meet the Court's "prejudice” requirement, a criminal defendant must

"@'}a(esofg
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show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, he would.not have pled

' guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill at 59. Although the Applicant testified that

he would not have pled guilty had Counsel been prepared for trial, this Court does not find that

testimony credible. A review of the guiity plea transcript reflects that the Applicant was fully .

informed of -his constitutional rights and chose to waive those .rights. The Applicant

‘acknowledged his guilt and informed the court that he was pleased with Counsel’s

representation. The Applicant has failed to establish that he would have proceedec.l'tql trial, but
for any alleged deficiencies of Counsel. Therefore, thls claim is denied and dismissed.

Insufficient Evidence

The Applicant alleged “insufficient evidence,” and the State moved to summarily dismiss

the claim. A guilty plea generally constitutes a waiver of non-jurisdictional defects and claims of

violations of constitutional rights. See Rivers v. Strickland, 264 S.C. 121, 124,213 S.E.2d 97, 98
(1975) (a plea of guilty constitutes a waiver of non-Junsdxctxonal defects and defgse@nc@mg

claims of violation of constitutional rights prior to the plea), Whetsell Ve State 27%8 @9

7:"1
SE2d 891 (1981). Therefore the plea waives any non-jurisdictional defec@nﬁef%

> "D Dn(‘.

mcludmg challenges to the sufficiency of the evidence. “Where a defcnd@ vpj,untax;(ry,

hr

intelligently, and understandingly enters & plea of gullt, this makes it unnecessary for ﬂﬁ'é’St;{e to

offer evidence to prove the offense charged in the warrant or indicunen_t.”, State v. Allen, 261

S.C. 448, 200 S.E.2d 684, 686 (1973).: This is because t}ie guilty plea “admits all matter of fact
averments of the accusation.” ]d. The defendant admits all circumstances described in the
indictment, leaving only sufficiency of the indictment for review and waiving all other defenses.

State v. Thomason, 341 S.C. 524, 534 S.E.2d 708, 709 (2000). Additionally, PCR is not a proper

avenue to challenge the sufficiency of evidence. Simmons v, State, 264 S.C. 417, 215 S.E2d

Wﬁs Of 9 | :



883 (1974); S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20(a)(6). Therefore, this Court finds thaf this claim is
- summarily dismissed based -upon S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-'70(c) (1985), which authorizes the
Ceurt to “grant a motion by either party for summary disposition of [an] application when it
-appears fr_om the pleadings ... that there is no geﬁuine issee of material fact and the moving party
is enﬁtied to judgment asa metter-of law.”

Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction

The Applicant alleged a lack of subject matter jurisdiction based upon the fact that he

was indicted for trafficking in cocaine +400 grams, but pled to and was sentenced for trafficking
in cocaine 23—100 grams. This Court finds that this allegation lacks merit. The circuit court has

subject matter jurisdiction to accept a defendant's guilty plea to an offense if “the defendant

pIead.s' to a lesser included offense of the crime charged in the indictment.” State v. Imons,
w

338 S.C. 287, 289, 525 S.E.2d 906, 907-08 (S.C. Ct. App 1999) aff'd, aﬁ’d 349 8.C. 33) .ﬁ S¥.ad

=
rn

l&’ﬂd

657 (2002) overruled on other grounds by State v. Gem, 363 S.C. 93, 610 S. E;Rl 4@ (

cncnc:Or“

(emphasis added). “Presentment of an indictment or a waiver of presentment 1s:not nzeedém
confer subject matter jurisdiction on the circuit court.” State v. Gentry, 363 S. Cn93 I@Z $£0
S.E. 2d 494, 499 (2005). Therefore, this Court finds that any defects in the mdlctment did not
affect -the- subject ‘matter jurisdiction: of the court and the Applicant properly pled gmlty to the
lesser-included charge Therefore, this clalm is demed and dlsmlssed
| : Summaty .

This Court finds in regards to the ailegation of ineffective asmstance of counsel, the
Applicanf?s testimony is not credible, This Court further finds Counsel adequately conferred
with the Applicant, condueieel a proper investigation, was’ thorou.ghly competent in his

representation, and that Counsel’s conduct does not fall below the objective stahdarq' of

; 7‘% of9
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reasonableness.

'Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the
. Strickland test — that Counsel fa..iled to render reasonably effective assistance under prevailing
professional norms. The Applicant ‘failed tc; ;Sresent specific and compelling evidence that
. Counsel committed either errors or ornissions in his represe-ntation of the Applicant.
This Court aiso finds the Applicant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland - -
that he was prejudiced by Counsel’s performance. This Court concludes the Applicant has. not
“met his burden of proving Counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance. See Mer
supra. Therefore, this allegation is denied. |
| ~ CONCLUSION
Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes that the App igaﬂ)as-mot
established any consutunonal violations or deprivations that would require this coﬁ toﬁan%ﬁ
_apphcatxon Therefore, this application for post conviction relief must be denied @i dﬁimsgg_:
= J
o EE

<
F

This Court cautions Applicant that he must file and serve a notice of appeal mﬂmiﬁ’thirty

[ERI

. with prejudice.

Ajwasv

(30) days from the receipt by counsel of written notice of entry of judg_ment to secure the

appropriate appellate review. See Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453

(1991), an _Ap]ilicant his a right to an appellaté éounsel’s assistance in seeking review of the

denial of PCR. Ruie 71.1(g), éCRCP, provides that if the applicant wishes to seek appellate _
| lreview, PCR counsel must serve and file a Notice of Appeal on the Applicant’s behalf. Yoqr

attention is ciirected to South Carolina Appé,llate..Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures for

appéal.

69@801’9
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:
1.

That the Application for Post-Conviction Relief must be denied
and dismissed with prejudice; and
2.

The Applicant must be remanded to thé custody of the Respondent:
AND IT IS SO ORDERED this 2% _day of fww‘i‘l ,2014.

J. Detham Cole
Pre{ding Judg

r—
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) "INDICTMENT
_ )
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

. ' NOV 24 9008
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on — the

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

TRAFFICKING IN COCAINE

That David Anthony SteWa.rt did in'Spartanburg County on or about June 16, 2009,
knowingly sell, manufacture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or did
provide financial assistance or did otherwise aid, abet, attempt, or conspire to seli.
manufacture, cultivate, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or did knowingly
actually or constructively possess or did knowingly attempt to bécome in actual or
constructive possession of more than (400) four hundred grams of Cocaine, a schedule
Il controlled substance, in violation of §44-53-370 , THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH
CAROLINA, (1978), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such

" ASSISTANT souc;oa —

case made and provided.
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